Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, May 16. 2023 in the Board Room of the
Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items and
such other itemns that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will be
live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA com/board via the meeting date for staff and
members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (“CDC") guidance to avoid crowded places where you cannot
stay six feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding congregating
and social distancing, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and employee health and
safety, RTA Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-six (36) people to allow for
social distancing. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff
permitted in the Board Room. All persons entering RTA's Main Office Building (‘“MOB") at 1240
West 6!" Street are required to maintain a distance of six feet or more from other individuals who are
not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order requiring
masks on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in

effect. The CDC continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public transportation
settings at this time. As a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that members of the
public wear a mask/face covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www riderta.com/board), on RTA's Facebook
page, and RTA's Twitter page.

8:30 AM. Compensation Committee
e Executive Session Requested — To consider the appointment, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or
official.

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
* Quarterly Management Report — Review of 1% quarter 2023 results.

Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached
.-rf_:.:? = / ’__ﬁ..::____:) -‘_‘_'_,_.-;r :

ndia L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




AGENDA
RTA COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Tuesday, May 16, 2023

8:30 A.M.

Committee Members: Mayor David E. Weiss, Chair
Mayor Paul A. Koomar
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss

l. Roll Call

I Executive Session Reguested — To consider the appointment,
employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of
a public employee or official.

(. Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE
Tuesday, May 16, 2023

Committee Members: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mayor David E. Weiss
Ms. Lauren R. Welch

L. Roll Call

1. Quarterly Management Report — Review of 1% quarter 2023 results

Presenter(s):
¢ India Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

I Adjourn



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, May 16, 2023

9:00 a.m.

Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the April 18, 2023 Board Meeting minutes
Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:

a. In person

b. Phone: 440-276-4600

c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e  Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e  Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: TBD

Ad Hoc Committee reports:
e Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
e Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Chair: TBD

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions
Introduction of resolutions:

A. 2023-35 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-025 with Terik Roofing, Inc. for
Project 19.36 — Hayden Garage Roof Replacement, as specified, in an



RTA Board of Trustees

May 16, 2023
Page 2

amount not to exceed $5,688,162.00 (RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

. 2023-36 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-030 with Suburban

Maintenance & Construction, Inc. for Project 62A — Rehabilitation of
Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" street, as specified, in an amount
not to exceed $7,563,549.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget)

2023-37 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-044 with Railworks Track
Services LLC for Project 19.37 — Catenary Rehabilitation Phase 2, as
specified, in an amount not to exceed $3,799,835.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget)

2023-38 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-50 with Reladyne, LLC for the
furnishing of engine oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one
(1) year in an amount not to exceed $293,250.40 (General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget)

2023-39 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-065 with Kronos Incorporated to
provide Kronos annual subscription and support for a period of one year
in an amount not to exceed $143,805.82 (General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget)

2023-40 — Appropriating the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority’s expenditures or outlays for the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2024 Capital
Improvement Budget

15. Secretary-Treasurer’'s Report:

a.
b.

Q

g.
h.
I

General Fund Revenue — status as of April 30, 2023 versus 2022 actuals
General Fund Revenue — status as of April 30, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through May 2023 ***TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT A LATER DATE***
Inventory of Treasury Investments as of April 30, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of April 30, 2023

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through April 30,
2023

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of April, 2023
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of April 30, 2023

Banking and Financial Relationships as of April 30, 2023

16. General Manager’'s Report

17. President’s Report

18. Old Business



RTA Board of Trustees
May 16, 2023

Page 3

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. In person
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Executive Session Requested — To consider the appointment, employment,
dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or
official.

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 27, 2023 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Board page
(www.RideRTA.com/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:03 a.m. April 18, 2023
Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Biasiotta, Joyce, Koomar, McCall, Pellot, Weiss, Welch
Not present: Moss
Staff: Bigger, Birdsong Terry, Blaze, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Dietrich, Fields, Fleig,
Freeman, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Harris, Hlavacs, Jones, Kirkland, Lincoln, Marquit Renwald,
Miller, Moore, Mothes, Schipper, Schnear, Sulik, Talley, Walker-Minor, Wilson, Young
Public: Alexander, Cahill, Cook, Hawkins, Loh, Stimson
The meeting was called to order at 9:03 a.m. There were eight (8) board members present.
It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of

the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons,
and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding

notice of meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the March 21, 2023 Board Meeting and Annual Meeting
had been previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or
corrections. There were no corrections, The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Kenneth Wilson — He is an RTA rail operator. He was charged with a DML over a train that
went through a red light due to mechanical failures. RTA management placed an unsigned
arbitration award in his personnel file. The incident happened in December 2020. The
arbitrator did not sign the award. Per the American Arbitration Association once an arbitrator
mails an arbitration award, the decision is final and binding. The unsigned award can be
brought up in a termination hearing per ORC, all arbitration awards must be signed by the
arbitration. He asked Dr. Caver to verify what was in his file. He asked for these items to be
removed from his file, Mr. Birdsong Terry said they can discuss the issue with him after the

meeting.

2. Dontez Taylor — He said we need more paratransit operators and telephone operators. The
wait on the phone is too long.

3. Sean Freeman — He complaint at the February Board Meeting requesting updates the
paratransit scheduling system. The request was for keyboard access for those who cannot
use a mouse and pad, separate phone lines for cancelations and scheduling and the ability to
type in their own address. The website contractor Trapeze, said they would not make
changes until next year. Mr, Davidson, Director of Paratransit said they are working with the
vendor to come up with solutions sooner.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 18, 2023
Page 2 of 5

Committee Reports

Mayor Koomar stated that the Audit Committee will meet on May 9 at 9 a.m. He reminded the Board
members who had not filed their financial statements to do so before the deadline.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

There was no report.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

There were no reports.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:
Darryl Hampton — Operator Porshia Smith — Operator
Vashawn Black — Operator Shrondra Hawkins — Operator
Brittany Mcatee — Operator Louis Swearingen — Operator
Leon Foster — Operator Ronesha Horton — Operator
Allucretia Wilson — Operator Chrishauna Storrs — Operator
Scharlene Ware — Operator Rudy Birch — Operator
William Blair = Rail Operator Sade Chambers — Rail Operator
Julio Santiago — Rail Operator Jenetha Talley — Rail Operator
Dameon Willis — Rail Operator Brandon Harney - Janitor
Anthony Conwell — Janitor Catare Allen — Laborer
Ashley Neiskell — Laborer Rodney Green — Laborer
Dan Pincombe — Material Flanner Richard Pozwick — Equipment Servicer
Alfred Rucker — Equipment Servicer Shoneice Barton — Executive Assistant
Amy Marquit Renwald — Sr. Counsel, Labor Benjamin Maline — Maintainer
Employment & Admin Law
Vannessa Johnson — Executive Assistant Lamaria Goldsby - Operator
Promotions:
Patrick Coffey — User Support Architect Marcus Gibson — Material Handler/Stock Clerk
Asia Marche Hall — Material Handler/Stock Clerk | Monigue Harris — Payroll Clerk
James Myers — Material Handler/Stock Clerk Keylin Tyree — Material Handler/Stock Clerk
Chantee Williams — Dispatcher - Paratransit

Introduction of Resolutions:

A.  2023-25 — Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority who retired during the first quarter of 2023, the adoption of which was
moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

There were fifteen retirees. President Lucas and Ms. McCall requested the retirees be
invited to attend the meetings in person again.

B. 2023-26 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-125 with Siemens Mobility, Inc. for the design,
manufacture and delivery of up to twenty-four (24) high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts,
tooling and training in an amount not to exceed $163,920,115.00 with options to procure up



RTA Board of Trustees
April 18, 2023
Page 3 of 5

to thirty-six (36) additional high floor light rail vehicles, spare parts, tooling, and training, to
be exercised over the seven (7) year term of the contract (RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall,
seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. McCall suggested there be a continuous fund for new trains. She thanked the state of
Ohio and NOACA. She suggested the car be sleeker and the community be engaged in the
design. Mr. Cahill, President, Rolling Stock, Siemens Mobility, Inc. thanked the RTA and
looks forward to engaging the Board and community.

C. 2023-27 — Authorizing Contract No, 2022-128 with Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. to
provide rail grinding services for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,160,500.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption
of which was moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous
vote.

D. 2023-28 - Authorizing Contract No. 2022-142 with US| Insurance Services LLC to provide
casualty insurance broker services for a period of three years in an amount not to exceed
$300,000.00, with two, one-year options in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for each
option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed $500,000.00 (Insurance Fund, Risk
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss,
seconded by Ms. Pellot. Ms. McCall requested a roll call. There were seven (7) ayes and
one abstention from Ms. McCall. It passed.

E. 2023-29 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-9 with Cook Paving & Construction Co., Inc. for
Project 19.45 — Central Rail Maintenance Facility Rail Shop Pit Drains in an amount not to
exceed $475,900.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by
Mr. Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

F. 2023-30 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-11 with White Associates, Inc. for the furnishing of
remanufactured air dryers, as specified and as required, for a period of one year in an
amount not to exceed $175,500.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

G. 2023-31 - Authorizing Contract No. 2023-019 with Railworks Track Services LLC for Project
19.68 — Waterfront Line Platform and Track Repairs, as specified, in an amount not to
exceed $1,047,832.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pellot, seconded by
Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

H. 2023-32 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-056 with Trapeze Software Group, Inc. DBA
Vontas to provide TransitMaster Software Cloud Hosting Services, including implementation,
for a period of three years in an amount not to exceed $760,101.00 (General Fund,
Information Technology Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by
Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 18, 2023
Page 4 of 5

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report. In
June 2022 inflation was at a high of 9.1%. The inflation rate has been trending lower. At the end of
February it was at 6%. Because of the aggressiveness of the federal government, the interest rates
have risen to 4.75%. There is discussion that these rates will continue to go up with projections in the
5% range by the end of the year. The FOMC is scheduled to meet May 3.

For the Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSA), the U.S. unemployment rate has risen to 3.6% through
the end of February. March numbers are not available. The total number of job openings decreased
to 9.9 millien. In February, they were down 632,000. The largest decreases were in professional
business services, healthcare, transportation, warehouse and utilities. Major layoffs have been seen
in the retail, food and technology areas like Walmart, Microsoft, Google, Roku and Amazon. All MSAs
have experienced an increase in the unemployment rate since January 2023. Cleveland is 4.9%, up
from 4.3%. Cincinnati is 3.6% up from 3.4%. Columbus is up from 3.3% to 3.4%. Dayton is 3.9% up
from 3.7%. Toledo increased from 4.1% to 4.4%.

End of year ridership projections for 2023 is 19.97 million. Ridership for 2022 ended with 18.83
million. Ridership for 2019 was 32.05 million. March 2023 ridership was up 15.4% compared to March
2022. Passenger Fares for the same period was down by 10.6%. That decline was due to a timing
issue with the collection of U-pass payments. Comparing RTA fare revenue to its peers, RTA is
better positioned than transit systems in Phoenix, Portland, Pittsburgh, Charlotte and Atlanta when
revenues are compared to the pandemic levels. This information was obtained from audited financial
statements. Similarly, compared to the larger transit agencies, RTA is better positioned compared to
systems in Los Angeles, Washington, DC, Boston, Philadelphia and New York City.

April Sales tax collections have not been received. It is generally available between the 15th and 20th
of the month. March numbers were up 7.4% compared to 2022. YTD sales tax is 6.6% higher.
Nineteen of the twenty-three categories were positive in March. Motor vehicles and watercraft were
up 15.5%. Online sales are up 21.4%. Regular and statewide sales were 7.4% higher. Mayor
Koomar asked if other agencies are not on a calendar basis. Mr. Gautam said they will include the
data for systems who are on a June 30 audited basis. Mr. Joyce noted that RTA took an immediate
hit while others lagged. He asked what that could be attributed to. Mr. Gautam said RTA took some
steps to ensure service was provided because of the community’s reliability on healthcare and food.
Dr. Caver added that some of the larger cities had a more pronounced downtown ridership pattern.
Our ridership was more dispersed. We had less of a hole to climb out of.

General Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. She thanked the team at Siemens
and the staff. A new 3-year labor agreement with the Fraternal Order of Police was signed March 24.
It took five meetings to come to an agreement. She thanked the staff and ATU leadership. RTA
partnered with the Cleveland Public Library for the Ride & Read Program at Tower City, Windermere
and West Park on April 12. Mayor Bibb, Ms. Birdsong Terry, several board members and library
leadership attended the event.

The RTA Positive Impact Mentoring Program for operators is showing great results - 82% of new
operators paired with a mentor are still working with RTA. Other transit systems have inquired about
the program. RTA is partnering with CMSD and City of Cleveland for the Stay Safe & Aware
Campaign. RTA will have increased security cameras and TP presence at some CMSD schools.
Promotional car cards are on RTA buses and trains. President Lucas thanked the staff for assisting

with his travel.



RTA Board of Trustees
April 18, 2023
Page 5 of 5

President's Report

There were no report.

Public Comments — public transit related items

1. Loh — Riders are concerned about safety and the system being user friendly and RTA caring
about them. She requested public engagement on the new rail cars. The design of the
paratransit website is out of date.

2. Airric Stewart — He suggested the #15A be put back in service. It would serve retail, schools,
colleges, libraries and hospitals. It would also cross all the rail lines.

3. Evangelist Renee Anderson — She asked that the #48A, #32 and #51 buses be reinstated.
More police are needed. Elevators are needed at more stations. Restrooms are needed for

seniors.

4. Dontez Taylor — Why is the #8 running hourly when the #11 used to go down Buckeye every
15-20 minutes.

5. Brian Shriver — He asked if two doors would be enough on the new rail cars during large
events. Dr. Caver said they will have a mechanism for all high floor loading for all Red Line

Stations.

President Lucas said no business will be needed after the executive session. His father was the first

African American to serve on the RTA Board in 1968. He gave the integral vote in approving rail
service from downtown to the airport. Ms. McCall added that RTA was the first transit system to have

direct service from downtown to the airport.

Executive Session Requested

President Lucas asked for a motion and second to go into executive session to enable the Board to
conference with GCRTA attorneys for information-gathering, fact-finding, and to receive legal advice.
It was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Pellot. There were eight (8) ayes and none opposed.

It was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. McCall to come out of executive session. There
were seven (7) ayes and none opposed. Ms. Pellot left prior to the roll call.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, May 16, 2023, in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.

The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:53 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 e
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: HAYDEN GARAGE ROOF REPLACEMENT 2023-35
Date:
VENDOR: TERIK ROOFING, INC. May 11, 2023

Initiator: Engineering

AMOUNT: $5,688,162.00 & Project

Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment [ Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide construction services for Project 19.36 — Hayden
Garage Roof Replacement.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes, but
is not limited to, replacing areas of the roof at the Hayden District Bus Garage.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-seven (27)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Four (4) bids were received and opened on April 6, 2023. The bids received were as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Terik Roofing, Inc. $5,688,162.00
Warren Roofing & Insulating Co. $6,459,200.00
A.W. Farrell & Son, Inc. $6,654.000.00
Industrial First, Inc. $7,360,000.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Total Base Bid price of $5,688,162.00 from Terik Roofing, Inc. is 20.91% less
than the Independent Cost Estimate of $7,191,778.88. Terik Roofing, Inc. was determined to
be a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Terik Roofing, Inc. has been determined
by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 20% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Terik Roofing, Inc. has committed
to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Contractor Connections, Inc.
(Hispanic Female-owned) in the amount ($445,000.00 X 60%) = $267,000.00, River City
Building Solutions (Caucasian Female-owned) in the amount ($1,185,000.00 X 60%) =
$711,000.00, and Roma Designs (African American Male-owned) in the amount ($372,000.00
X 60%) = $223,200.00 for a DBE participation of $1,201,200.00 or 21%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Comments

Hayden Garage Roof Replacement 2023-35
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including
but not limited to, Capital Grant OH-2021-050-307, and pending the Bus and Bus
Facilities competitive grant in the amount of $5,000,000.00, for a total contract amount
not to exceed $5,688,162.00 ($4,000,000.00 in federal funds for the Bus & Bus Facilities
competitive grant and $550,529.60 for Capital Grant OH-2021-050-307, for a total of
$4,550,529.60 in federal funds, which represents 80% of total cost).

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will impact the Authority's ability to
complete necessary repairs at the Hayden District Bus Garage.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
2, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the bid from Terik Roofing, Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

90 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

~General Manager Chlef'E"écut@bfﬂcer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-35

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-025 WITH TERIK ROOFING, INC. FOR
PROJECT 19.36 - HAYDEN GARAGE ROOF REPLACEMENT, AS SPECIFIED,
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,688,162.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND,
ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as specified, under Project 19.36 — Hayden Garage

Roof Replacement; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Terik Roofing, Inc., located at 72 Hanna Parkway, Akron, Ohio
44319, was received on April 8, 2023 in an amount not to exceed $5,688,162.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Terik
Roofing, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Terik Roofing, Inc. for Project 19.36 — Hayden Garage Roof
Replacement, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Terik Roofing, Inc. for Project 19.36 —

Hayden Garage Roof Replacement.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grant OH-2021-050-307, and pending the Bus and Bus Facilities competitive grant in the
amount of $5,000,000.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $5,688,162.00
($4,000,000.00 in federal funds for the Bus and Bus Facilities competitive grant and
$550,529.60 for Capital Grant OH-2021-050-307, for a total of $4,550,529.60 in federal funds,
which represents 80% of total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Terik Roofing, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 20% minimum DBE goal assigned to
this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: REHABILITATION OF TRACK/PLATFORM BRIDGES 2023-36
OVER W. 117™ STREET Date:
May 11, 2023
VENDOR: SUBURBAN MAINTENANCE & CONSTRUCTION, Initiator; Engineering
INC. & Project
Development
AMOUNT: $7,563,549.00 Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [ Review/Comment [0 Information Only [0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract to provide construction services for Project 62A -
Rehabilitation of Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract entails
replacement of the Eastbound and Westbound bridge decks and structural steel support
brackets, pier bearing replacement, substructure retrofits/rehabilitation, removal of existing
platform, construction of a new fiber reinforced platform deck, canopy roof repairs, micro pile
installation, ballast removal/replacement, track and tie removal/reuse, headhouse work, ballast
retainer installation, and bridge painting.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirty-seven (37)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Two (2) bids were received and opened on April 13, 2023, One (1) bid was deemed to be non-
responsive. The responsive bid is as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. $7,563,549.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Total Base Bid price of $7,563,549.00 from Suburban Maintenance &
Construction, Inc. is 1.9% less than the Independent Cost Estimate of $7,706,250.00.
Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Suburban Maintenance & Construction,
Inc. has been determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the

Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 13% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Suburban Maintenance &
Construction, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the following

DBE firms:




Staff Summary & Comments

Rehabilitation of Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street

2023-36

Page 2
DBE DBE Scope of Work Amount
Name/Address Category
AKA Waterproofing African American | Waterproofing $19,600.00
Cleveland, Ohio Female-owned
American Roadway Caucasian MOT $47,500.00

Logistics, Inc.
Richfield, Ohio

Female-owned

Baseline Supply
Monroe Twp. NJ

Caucasian
Female-owned

FRP Panel Supply

$882,000.00 x 60%
$532,900 participation

Cook Construction African American | Track Excavation $78,000.00
Brooklyn Hts., Ohio Female-owned

Cuyahoga Fence Caucasian Railing $164,000.00
Cleveland, Ohio Female owned

Denise's Flagging African American | Flagging $95,000.00
Warrensville Hts,, Ohio Female-owned

DGL Consulting Caucasian Engineering Survey | $50,000.00

Engineers
Maumee, Oho

Female-owned

Total DBE
Participation

$987,000.00 or 13%

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including
but not limited to Capital Grants OH-2018-024, OH-2019-037-307, OH-2019-037-337,
OH-2021-050-307-5307 ,.and OH-2021-050-337-5337 in an amount not to exceed
$7,143,149.00 and a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the City of Lakewood
in the amount of $280,000.00, and a MOU with the City of Cleveland in the amount of
$140,400.00 for a total contract amount not to exceed $7,563,549.00 ($5,714,519.20 in
federal funds, which represents 76% of the total cost).

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will allow for continued deterioration of
the track and platform bridges over W. 117" Street.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
2, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the bid from Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. be accepted and the resolution
passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

2

_7General Manager, Chief Exectitive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-36

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-030 WITH SUBURBAN MAINTENANCE &
CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR PROJECT 62A — REHABILITATION OF
TRACK/PLATFORM BRIDGES OVER W. 117™ STREET, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $7,563,549.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND,
ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as specified, under Project 62A — Rehabilitation of
Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc., located at 16330
York Road, North Royalton, Ohio 44133, was received on April 13, 2023 in an amount not to
exceed $7,563,549.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Suburban
Maintenance & Construction, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. for Project 62A —
Rehabilitation of Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street, be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Suburban Maintenance & Construction,
Inc. for Project 62A — Rehabilitation of Track/Platform Bridges over W. 117" Street.

Section 3. That this procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to
Capital Grants OH-2018-024, OH-2019-037-307, OH-2019-037-337, OH-2021-050-307-
5307, and OH-2021-050-337-5337 in an amount not to exceed $7,143,149.00, and a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the City of Lakewood in the amount of
$280,000.00, and a MOU with the City of Cleveland in the amount of $140,400.00 for a
total contract amount not to exceed $7,563,549.00 ($5,714,519.20 in federal funds, which
represents 76% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 13%
minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: CATENARY REHABILITATION PHASE 2 2023-37
Date:
VENDOR: RAILWORKS TRACK SERVICES LLC May 11, 2023

Initiator: Engineering

AMOUNT:  $3,799,835.00 & Project

Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval [0 Review/Comment [ Information Only [O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority") to enter into a contract to provide construction services for Project 19.37 -

Catenary Rehabilitation Phase 2.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract includes, but
is not limited to, rehabilitating and repairing poles, base plates, anchor bolts, structural arms,

and down guys.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“IFB") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Eleven (11)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Two (2) bids were received and opened on April 5, 2023 as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Railworks Track Services LLC $3,799,835.00
Suburban Maintenance & Construction, Inc. $3,863,000.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Total Base Bid price of $3,799,835.00 from Railworks Track Services LLC is
8.04% greater than the Independent Cost Estimate of $3,517,142.00. Railworks Track
Services LLC was determined to be a responsible bidder.

A price analysis has been performed, and the bid of Railworks Track Services LLC has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 15% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Railworks Track Services LLC
has committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Cook Paving
and Construction Co. (African American female-owned) in the amount of $570,000 or 15%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including
but not limited to, Capital Grants OH-2018-024, OH-2019-037-307, OH-2019-037-337,
and OH-2020-044-5337 for a total contract amount not to exceed $3,799,835.00
($3,039,868.00 in federal funds, which represents 80% of the total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid will allow for the continued degradation
of the catenary poles between the Tower City, Windermere, and the Waterfront stations.




Staff Summary & Comments
Catenary Rehabilitation Phase 2 2023-37

Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the May
2, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the bid from Railworks Track Services LLC be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing

the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

M/f“‘%-

G";éﬁeral Manager, Chief 'Ex*é"'utlvg‘lcer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-37

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-044 WITH RAILWORKS TRACK
SERVICES LLC FOR PROJECT 19.37 - CATENARY REHABILITATION PHASE
2, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $3,799,835.00 (RTA
DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as specified, under Project 19.37 — Catenary
Rehabilitation Phase 2; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Railworks Track Services LLC, located at 2101 S. Carpenter St.,
Chicago, lllinois 60608, was received on April 5, 2023 in an amount not to exceed
$3,799,835.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Railworks
Track Services LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Railworks Track Services LLC for Project 19.37 — Catenary
Rehabilitation Phase 2, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Railworks Track Services LLC for Project
19.37 — Catenary Rehabilitation Phase 2.

Section 3. That this procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to, Capital
Grants OH-2018-024, OH-2019-037-307, OH-2019-037-337, and OH-2020-044-5337 for a total
contract amount not to exceed $3,799,835.00 ($3,039,868.00 in federal funds, which represents
80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Railworks Track Services LLC will attempt to exceed the 15% minimum DBE goal
assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

VENDOR:
AMOUNT:

CONTRACT: FURNISHING OF ENGINE OIL, AS SPECIFIED AND AS

REQUIRED, FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR

RELADYNE, LLC

NOT TO EXCEED $293,250.40

2023-38

Date:

May 11, 2023

Initiator:

Fleet Management
Department

Approval

ACTION REQUEST:

0O Review/Comment

0 Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into a contract for the furnishing of engine oil, as specified and

as required, for a period of one (1) year.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This contract for engine oil is necessary for the

maintenance of the Authority's revenue and non-revenue vehicles with gasoline, diesel and
CNG fueled engines.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids (“"IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement web site and advertised in the local newspapers. Sixteen (16) interested parties
downloaded the solicitation. Four (4) responsive bids were received on April 19, 2023.

The bid of Reladyne, LLC has been determined by the Procurement Department to be the

lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder.

Reladyne Safety Kleen
Diesel GCRTA Extended Diesel GCRTA Extended
Gallons Part # Amount Total Gallons Part # Amount Total
25,000 61-195 S 10.80 $270,000.00 25,000 61-195 S 11.81 $295,250.00
440 61-195a S 11.50 S 5,060.00 440 61-195a $649.43 5 5,195.44
550 61-187a $ 10.16 S 5,588.00 550 61-187a $600.00 $  6,000.00
220 61-183a 5 10.92 $  2,402.40 220 61-183a $650.00 $ 2,600.00
1,000 61-183b S 10.20 5 10,200.00 1,000 61-183h § 11.77 $ 11,770.00
$293,250.40 $320,815.44
Valvoline Gl Petro
Diesel GCRTA Extended Diesel GCRTA Extended
Gallons Part # Amount Total Gallons Part # Amount Total
25,000 61-195 S 12.05 $301,250.00 25,000 61-195 5 12.75 5318,750.00
440 61-195a S5 12.55 S 5,522.00 440 61-195a $ 13.75 S 6,050.00
550 61-187a 5 12.65 S5 6,957.50 550 61-187a S 13.60 S 7,480.00
220 61-183a § 12.65 $ 2,783.00 220 61-183a S 1462 5 3,216.40
1,000 61-183b 5 12.25 S 12,250.00 1,000 61-183b 5 1362 5 13,620.00
$328,762.50 $349,116.40




Staff Summary & Comments 3
Engine Qil 2023-38
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined the
price to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. The bid price is approximately 14% below the
independent cost estimate.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE
firms.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement will be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, for a period of one (1) year in an amount not to exceed
$293,250.40.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would impact the Authority's ability to
operate its vehicles.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Reladyne, LLC be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

; P
.,-v/Genaral Managar Ch?ef—Ex'écutﬁ;e,__fﬁEer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-38

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-50 WITH RELADYNE, LLC FOR THE
FURNISHING OF ENGINE OIL, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $293,250.40
(GENERAL FUND, FLEET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires the
furnishing of engine oil for the Authority's vehicles; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Reladyne, LLC, located at 4411 Crystal Pkwy, Kent, Ohio 44240,
for the furnishing of engine oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year was
received on April 19, 2023 at unit prices resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed
$293,250.40; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Reladyne,
LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Reladyne, LLC for the furnishing of engine oil, as specified
and as required, for a period of one (1) year be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer be and she is hereby
authorized to enter into a contract with Reladyne, LLC for the furnishing of engine oil, as
specified and as required, for a period of one (1) year.

Section 3. That said contract shall be funded through the General Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget, for a period of one (1) year in an amount not to exceed
$293,250.40.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any, the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Reladyne, LLC will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this
procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: KRONOS ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUBSCRIFTION AND 2023-39
SUPPORT Date:
May 11, 2023
VENDOR: KRONOS INCORPORATED Initiator:
Management
Information Services
AMOUNT: NTE $143,805.82 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority (“Authority”) to enter into the annual agreement for software subscription and support
of Kronos applications and equipment for a period of one year.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has been utilizing Kronos software technology
and applications since 1998. Annual maintenance, licensing and support are required to
maintain the Kronos applications and equipment (time clocks). Kronos is a companion product
for payroll processing. Kronos technology and applications are proprietary products designed
exclusively by Kronos Incorporated.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This contract for maintenance and support services is
exempted from competitive bidding under Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code.
Because Kronos applications are proprietary, Kronos Incorporated is the only source
authorized to provide maintenance, licensing and support for the Kronos system. After
negotiations, Kronos Incorporated offered to provide subscription and support for the Kronos
software products for a negotiated amount not to exceed $143,805.82 for a one-year period.
This total is approximately 1% below the project estimate of $145,000.00. The Management
Information Services Department reviewed the offer for adherence to technical scope.

A price analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that
the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

40 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement because it is for the
maintenance of proprietary software, for which work is limited and exclusive to the original
provider and installer by agreement.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $143,805.82 for a period

of one year.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Kronos software
applications unlicensed and unsupported, which would jeopardize the functionality of critical
HR/Payroll systems.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: Itis recommended that the offer of Kronos Incorporated be accepted
and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer tc enter

into a contract.



Staff Summary & Comments
Kronos Annual Subscription & Support
Page 2

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

,-f'/

Mw{/ﬁ%ﬂt

Geﬁeral Manager, Chief Ekecfi veiijﬁl_

2023-39



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-39

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-065 WITH KRONOS INCORPORATED
TO PROVIDE KRONOS ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION AND SUPPORT FOR A
PERIOD OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $143,805.82
(GENERAL FUND, MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes Kronos-licensed products for human resources management and payroll processing;
and

WHEREAS, annual subscription and support are required to use and maintain this
software application; and

WHEREAS, these services are available from Kronos Incorporated, located at 900
Chelmsford Street, Lowell, MA 01851, the original licensor of these products; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code provides that competitive
bidding is not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or
license for telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services or systems, or
for the upgrade of such equipment, services or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as
supplied by the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, Kronos Incorporated has offered to provide said subscription and support at
a negotiated amount not to exceed $143,805.82 for a period of one year, and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Kronos
Incorporated, as negotiated, to provide maintenance and support services for the Kronos
software applications, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Kronos Incorporated, as negotiated, to provide software
maintenance and support services for a period of one year, be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and she is
hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Kronos Incorporated to provide said services.

Section 3. The contract will be funded through the General Fund, Management
Information Services Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $143,805.82 for a period
of one year.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.



Resolution No. 2023-39
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Kronos Incorporated will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to

this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

100-326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2023-40

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Date:
AUTHORITY'S EXPENDITURES OR OUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR | May 11, 2023

("FY") 2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET Initiator:

Office of Management
& Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval ] Review/Comment [ Information Only [ Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize appropriations for Fiscal Year 2024 (“FY
2024") for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's ("Authority”) Capital
Improvement Budget covering locally-funded and grant-funded projects.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: FY 2024 begins January 1, 2024 and ends

December 31, 2024. There is a six-month process to incorporate new or revised grant
funded capital projects into the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency's (‘NOACA”")
Transportation Improvement Plan (“TIP") and Ohio’s State Transportation Improvement
Plan (“STIP") prior to their inclusion in any current and future federal and non-federal grant
programs. In order to advance the availability of capital grant funds for the upcoming fiscal
year, the development of the FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget began in September
2022 and involved extensive staff analysis and preparation as well as one meeting of the
Board's Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee on May 2, 2023. One public
hearing was held on May 2, 2023 to discuss the proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement
Budget. The Capital Improvement Budget proposed for adoption herein represents the
Authority's spending plans for capital improvements throughout the transit system in FY
2024.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget provides for the upkeep of
the Authority's existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment, and vehicle replacement
programs, and it also provides for the implementation of projects included in the Long-
Range Plan.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget provides the
budget authority for the spending of $146,274,914 for capital improvement projects, of which
$142,245,993 is for the RTA Development Fund and $4,028,921 is for the RTA Capital
Fund.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify the proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget by adding or
subtracting expenditures or revenues for specific capital projects, or delay adoption of the
proposed Capital Improvement Budget, which would delay the availability of grant funds in
the upcoming fiscal year.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget was reviewed
May 2, 2023 by the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is recommended
for adoption by the Board of Trustees. It is recommended that the Board of Trustees
approve the proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget as proposed herein.




Staff Summary & Comments
FY 2023 Capital Improvement Plan Budget

Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

Jamoon >

2024 - 2028 Combined Capital Improvement Plan

2024 — 2028 RTA Development Fund Capital Improvement Plan
2024 — 2028 RTA Capital Fund Capital Improvement Plan
Combined Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Development Fund Balance Analysis

RTA Capital Fund Balance Analysis

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability

of funds, legal form, and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

z . Z
ey

2023-40

e _ il =
General Manager, Ch‘fef'E&ec@e Officer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-40

APPROPRIATING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY'S EXPENDITURES OR OUTLAYS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
(“FY") 2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

WHEREAS, there are both legal and managerial requirements to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital
improvement program of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) to be
paid or met from said revenue, during each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Budget for
the Authority for the Fiscal Year beginning January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024
("FY 2024") has been prepared; and

WHEREAS, said budget has been made available for public inspection for at least ten
(10) days by having at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the Authority's Office of
Management and Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees discussed the proposed FY 2024 Capital Improvement Budget on May 2, 2023 and
one public hearing was held on May 2, 2023 with public notice given by: (1) publication in the
Cleveland Call & Post and Cleveland Plain Dealer on April 14, 2023 and Cleveland Plain Dealer
on April 26, 2023, and (2) postings in the Authority's Main Office Building, Customer Service
Center in the Tower City Rotunda, Facebook and Twitter pages, and internet website.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenditures or outlays of the RTA
Capital and RTA Development Funds during FY 2024 are as indicated below and the amounts
to be expended and encumbered in each classification during FY 2024 are hereby set aside and

appropriated:
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS

RTA Capital Fund $ 4,028,921
RTA Development Fund 142,245,993
Total Capital Improvements $146,274.914

Section 2. That transfers of funds may be made in this capital appropriation budget
from one project to another, or from one department to another, or from one line item to another,
but not from one fund to another without approval by the Authority's Board of Trustees.

Section 3. That this budget may be amended from time to time to appropriate
additional capital grant funds that may be received in FY 2024,



Resolution No. 2023-40
Page 2

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: May 16, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Aio8a1e] dIJ |1V - 8Z-F20T - YXSX 00PN J8Y

£91°96.°989¢ 09€'tl0'668 TSS'TO0'PLLS 0S0TLE'6VLS L6Z'CESLLLS PLE'VIT'OVLS SIVLOL
00052428 000°'s2€$ 000°G.LES 000'SLES 000°00£$ 000°00£'L$ sigjuag yisuel)
005°ZLE'6ZLS  000'002'2Z$  O000'SZE'ZE$  000°009°2Z$  000°0SL'6¥$  O00S'ZTre'BES sjofoid |iey
005'289'6ZLS  000'0SZ'PE$  000'0SL'tL$  000'00S'0Z$  000'00S'¥ES  00S'.8¥'ZHS weiboid Jeg |iey
857'266'92% 1BB'SI6'ELY 692'220'9% L8°252'S% si0'ovL'LY ELE'LOO LS "quisy sdQyjulel aanuaalg
£55°2€2'29% 915°'L¥8'2$ 9/5°1¥8'2$ 9.5°1pE'BLS  GIS'Ipe'eed  0SZ'Lig8'ce syoaloud 9y30
000°0Z8'58% 000'580°L$ 000°098°cl$  000°68S°9Z$  000'0L8'tl$  000°08P'FES sjuawanosd sa1oes
816°960'58% 0S5L'4P0'8LS  OEL'EOZ'9LS  €SE'986°SZ$  PRL'PE9'LIZS  LP5'SZT'GS saja1yap g Juawdinbz
8€Z'699'GLLS  LPLI'BET'EZ$  I66'PBL'EZS  L¥Z'IZM'EE$  L6P'LS0'sE$ 0S2'990'tZ$ sasng
0000559 0$ 000°005$ 000°0512$ 0s$ 000°006'c$ safieteg sng
8202-¥T0Z 820z 2202 9z0T SZ0Z veoe
1oL AYO093LVD 103roud

NV1d LNJIWIAOHdINI TVLIdVD 820C - ¥202C

IV1IdVD V1d + ANNd LNIFWNJO13A3A VLI

W JUSLIYoBY Y




AluQ pund 'ABQ - 8Z-FZOT - GXSIXHOOQHION DaY

NV1d LNJWIAOUdINI TVLIdVD 820C - 202

8 awysely

68F'215'9998  0LZ'900°66$ ZZB'86L'60LS 269°96°SYLY L9.°G6V'ELLS €66'SYZIrLS SIV10L
000's2LZS 000°s.£% 000'5LE$ 000'62£$ 000°00£% 000'00£°L$ Si8jua) ysued )
00S'LLZ'SLLS 000'002°'ZZ$  000'sze'Z€$  000°009'4Z$  000'0SL'6PS  00S'Zve'8cs syoafoid jrey
005'L8V'STLS 000°0SZ'¥L$  DO00'0SL'tl$  000°005°0Z$  O0DO'00S'PES  00S'Z8¥'Zvs weiBoid Jed ey
8S1'Z66'97% 188516218 6¥2Z'TZ0'98 v18'252'S$ SL0'0VLLS €2£°100°1$ "quiey 1adQfJulely argusAald
£55'L£2'€9% 9/5°1¥8°Z$ 915'1¥8'Z$ 9/5'1pe'8le  SIS'Ipe'eed 0SzZ'Lig'ss sjasloid Japo
000°0£0'7L% 000'SLLPS 000'0S¥'LLS  000°SIZ'¥2S  000'00F'LLS  000'0DLL'ZES sjuswaeaocid| sanijioey
0bZ'c95'94% 000'0SE'¥L$  000'0SE'vL$  000'0SE'PZ$  0Z9'900°0Z¢  0Z9'90S‘c$ sa]IyaA B Juawdinby
8£Z'699'5L1$ Lri'9eT'ETS 166'¥8)'eTS LPTLZLETS LBP' L50'ETS 05.'990'€TY sesng
000°'055'9% 0% 000°005% 000°051°Z% 0% 000'006'c$ sabeleg sng
BEZ0C-¥C0T 8z02 1202 9z0¢ 5202 ¥ecoe ANOOILYD 193rONd
L0l
aNnd LN3W4013A30 V1Y




AU d¥D V1Y - 8Z-FZ0T - IXS|XHOOQIOM D8V

819°¢8Z'0Z¢  0SL'Z00'vS  0£L't9T'v$  £SEiOVE'SS  vISLE0'PS LZ6'9Z0FS SIYLOL
0% 03 0$ 0$ 0% 0% Ssisjuag ysuel]
0% 03 04 0% 0% 04 sjoalold [rey
0% 0% 0% 0$ 0% 0% welBoud Jeg ey
0% 0$ 0% 0% 0% 0$ "quiay tadQjjulely aanuanald
0% 0% 04 0% 0% 04 sjoaloid 190
000°0SL°LLS 000°0L£°Z$ 000'0LF'ZS 000'0L£'Z$ 000'0LY'ZS 000°01E'2$ sjuawano.diul sani|ioed
819°€€5'8% 0S1°269'1$ 0€L'e58'LS £5£'9£9'1$ $26'L28°1$ 126'8LL LS sa[oIyap g juswdinbg
0$ 0% 0$ 08 0$ 03 sesng
0% 0% 0$ 0s 0$ 0s$ sabeseg sng
820Z-¥Z0Z 8202 120z 9zZ0Z sZ0Z A1 TA
WLOL AYO93LYD LOAroud
IWLIdYD V1
NV1d LNIJINIAOHLNI TV LIdVD 8202 - 202
0 JuBLIYoRRY




9T6'ShL'OVE LYD'TLT OFE LEE'TTOPEE ZH0'8L6Z0E 4 990'098"'S62 6SE'ZE0'96T
LEO'TLT ORE LBRETTOVEE TPO'BLG'TOE BSE'ZED'I6T BSETBO'I6T SET'SES'BYT
{TeT'szr's) 099°85T'TT SSEPED'TT £89'568'9 [E6TEET) EZT LSS LHT
OSO'TTE'GYT TEET'EES LLT FIG'FLZOFT PEE'BLGEET PEE'BLGGET OS5 'SET

- = - - E TTH'E6E'TR

- = - = - TZF'E6E' 18
0S0°ZTE'6HT TEZ'EES LLT PIE'VLTONT PEE'RLGBET FEE'BLE'BET ErL'092 I
ESE9EQ'T PIS'LEI'T TZEBTLT FELLEST PELLET'T SIR'TES'T
DOD0TE'T 000°0TH'T D000TE'T 000'0TH'T 000°0TH'E OD0'T8S'T
159596 ST £94°9E%'ELT E6E SFTTHT 099°0EG'SET 099°0E6'SET SIE'96D"TY
6T6 98T THT Tr6'T69°66T 697 60E"L9T LLD'FLBOET TOT'95L"6ET LBTTIT'ELE
TET'TEIDE PEL BT BT 968625 LT PiB'Pe6"SE B98'998'TE LSE'STLYS
000'000°0T Q00°000'0T 000 000'0T 000°000'0T 000°000'0T 000°000'0T
ITTTER'DE e LBT'ST SERGES'LT PYRPER'ET 8989981 L50'SEL Y
000°s9Z'SZ Q00'S9L'ZE PEL'SBL"IE 000'061"F2 000°D6Y'PE 990'8ES'ST
000'000°sT 000°005'TE PELOTS ST 000'STE'TE ODO'SEE'FE TEE'ETS'ET
000's9z 00059 00055 000592 00059 FEL'FED'E
£{69'06E'83 LYT'GEL'BET 6LS'E6ETTT EEE'GEEER EEL'GEE'ES POt VB T0E
LEEDETSE LFLstE'sg LEEITT'TH 8RS"OEE'GE 8650EE'ET 9rC'eTLE

= = = = = 1Zr's62'18
056'6TE s OOt E6E'TL TBS'9L8'TL SEY'290't S SEQES0'TY LEF'SES'LTT

ueyd uepd 128png ¥eL ajewnsy 123png |enyay
9Z0T Ad SZOL Ad 0T Ad £20T A4 EZOZ Ad CZOT Ad

sisAjeuy asuejeg pun4 juawanoadwy] jeyde)
g uzwpoeny

aoue|eg Sulpu3 ajgejieny pajewIns]
2Jueeq Suiuuidag
(aseasdaq) aseatou| 1aN

saunypuadiy |e301

sanypuadx3 (eyde) S0 |e1eL
saunyupuadsg J20
BIUEBISISSY [EIADBS

saunypuzdx] (exdes 240
Aejang |ende] jeio)

[ENdes aunoy

SIUBLRILIR |y 3355y
pun4 uawdo@aag - Aeng |2adey

depng [endey

saunipuadny
sanuanay |e3oL

si3ysued) jERO)

pung anasay Loy Jagsuel)
pUNY [EJBUAG) W0L) J24SURT ]

EICTE:TN

sanuanay Jayig jelo)L

snuanaYy JAYI0

FLUODU| JUSLLSAU}
SpISI0LY FHAUAS 103

anuanay JAYI0

sanuanay I3e1s [ |esepag [B30L
S1uelD |endeD Alels
BIUEISISSY [B1FP24
SJUBsS |eyded |erapay

sanuanay 31835 [ |erepad

Sanuansy



BS9'9TT'SEE 859°T60'OVE BLTBYS'LTE BER'6L006T 868°6.0'06T 4§ SZEI9'BIT
B9 TREOVE BLT'APS'LTE B68'6L0'06T CZE'999°88T STE'989'38T TZ0FO9GET
{000"5LE'S) DBE'EFE'TT ORE'AIN'LT ELGERET £L5'E6E'T POETADGHT
L59°596°5HT L9L°SEY'ELT EG6'SYT'ENT 099°0E6°SET 093'DEG'SET 9E'OGEZET
- - - - - TIH'ERE TS
- = * = - TZF'ERE' TR
£59°596°SHT L9L'SEP'ELT E66'SPTTHT 099'0E6°SET 093'DEG'SET SZ6'960'TY
LB9'595'SFT L9'SAY'ELT EB6'SPT'TRT 099°0E6"SET 099'DER'SET STEIE0TH
£69°DBS" 0FT LPT'BEF'IET ELEPILGIT EET'PTELET EETVTELET 059'ZLRTLE
000°000° LT 000'000'SE 00000008 00000562 000°'005°6T SOt'RITES
000°000°0T 000'000'0T 0ao'ooo'ot 00000001 000'000'0T 0000000t
apoo0o‘LT Con'00n'sT CO0'000'0E 0D0005°6T 0O0'00S'6T SOF'BITEY
000°002"ST 000'00LZE PELOTLGE 000°ST'bT 000'STV'HE TZL96EST
CO0000ST DOD'00S'ZE ¥5L'0ES'ST 000"SZE"E n0o'see'ye TEE'ETSET
00000t 0O DOz 0o0'0oz 000002 000°002 GEE'EER'T
£6906E"88 LET'6EL'SET BLSEGR'TLT EEZ'GHE'ER EET'GGE'ER POt LVB 0T
LPEDLTSE Lre'srE'e L6E'9TT'TH BASOEE'ST BES'OEE'ST GrSBILE
- - . - - TZF'E6T T8
0S6'6TL'ER COP'ERE'TE TES'OLB'TL SE9TI0FS SEQ'7E0'%9 $ LEY'SERLTT
uejd ueld 128png xe SYIELNST 1adpng jeniay
9T0ZT Ad ST0T M FEZOZ Ad ETOT Ad ETOT A4 CZ0C A

ouejeg Sulpul Ijqejeny pajeLursy
23uejeg Juuuwidag
[ase=u2ag) sseasau) 1an
saunypuadug |eyoL
saunppuadxy jeyded 13410 (e10L
SNPUAdNT JAYI0
FILISISSY |BIZP
saunppuadxg jended J2ya0
Aeging |eyde] (eyor
pung uawdoaasg - Aepng jeudey
Aepng jenden
saunypuadxy
sanuanay |eyoL
HETETEY T =TT
puUng SAsa5aY LU0 S3YSUBS ]
puny |exde] aunnoy iy Woy Jajsuel )
LFETLIEFT
SANUIAIY JAYID [eloL
INUINIY SO
LI JUFLWISAAU|
SPRal0id 30nRS 1020
sanuaazy BYI0
sanuanay 31e15 [ [e13pag [ejoL
siuelg epde] 3ielg
SIUBISISSY |EI3P24
SIUEID |eude?) |elapa4
sanuanay 31elS [ |esapad
sanuahay

sishjeuy asuejeg pun4 juswdojanaq V1Y

3 JuswydEny



B5Z'629'S $ G6BE'6L9'S $ GIT'Fat'a S PPI'BER'ZT $ B9T'08L's S PED96E'L
GRE'GLY'S GIT'trat"9 PET'968'CT PED'IRE"L PEO'S6E"L STZ'TZS"
([TeT’08) 0L ¥P8L) [SZ0'FER'D) OLT'T05S {958'sT9'T) {TET'SZS'T)
ESE'IV6'0Z TTSLED'BT TZ6'820°FT PELLWS'ET PEL LS EL EBT'T6E IV
000°000°LT 000°000°ST 000'000°02 000'005°6T 000°005'6T S9Y'BTL'EY
000°000°LT 000'000"sT 000°000'0T 00'00S61 0000056 T SST'BITEY
ESE'IVE"E PTSLED' Y TZ6'8Z0"F PEL' LR PELLVO'Y BIB'EIT'E
£5E9£9T FE5'LEST TE6'8TLT FEL'LEST PEL'LEST RIB'TRS'T
CO00TE'T Q00'0TH'T QD0'0TET Q00 0TE'E a0o'oTEE 000'T185°T
ZTTT'I6802 PELTSTET 958't65" LT tR'60"62 B98'TE6'TIT TOT'L598"'F
LT TER'DT PELEBTBT SER'ETS'LT F¥E're6"8T B9E'998TT LSL'STL b
00059 S 000's9 S 000’59 $ 000's9 $ 000's9 S SFE'THT
ueld ueld 1=8png xej) IeLnsy 128png jeniay
azZOT Ad GTOT A4 ZOLT Ad ETOT Ad ETOT Ad TTOT Ad

@ouejeq Suipu] 3|qepeay pAleWIS3
aoue|eg uieudag
[asea1aaq) asesudu) 33N

saunypuadx]y [eyde] Ja
pund Jualdoanag 1Y 0 Jajsuel
saJnpuadxg sayin

sainmjipuadxy |ejol
IO [e3o )

saunypuadxy jenden JAw0
Aepno |eydesd je3ol

{eyde] sunnoy
FIUEUIYUIE[N 1255

Aejng eyden

puUny [EI3UID) WOL J3JSUEL]
Inuanay SAYl0
BLLOIU| JUBWSIAL|

sishjeuy asuejeg |ende) auilnoy viy
4 WBWYdeY

saunypuadig
Sanu3nDY |el0)]

sanuaAaY



woooat KEFE TOEEILE 5 EELRSEDOT  §  LERTE'3E 5 %00000T Kass TEELIET [T TSR [] NG TYHINGS - QINED3E KW TVLOL

AT ENE NOLLVE PARLS ININZY

B RILED TIFLET EELTS5T 1TSS (3T - TTsIT TRTSIL - HEWD 30 SIXHNOS HIHLO ONY SLKIWISHNEMEY TYLOLBNS
) - - - - = - - = - LN CTRPUITH LD NTLSONA - SHITOWA TAOD
wono E - - - w000 - - - - AT
=T - J - . w00 - - - - WUSHHY TYH30
E - - - - X000 - - - - L SIHD THE303
b L FTETST) TR LITSEE KETD - To%'rE TS9'HE - 514133349 SNDIRYTEISIN
wEOG = 295BL 989'82 - I - SET'S SET'S E TIVLSSTY SHILVEId0 Y303
w0 - - * . L i) = . - - [HILWWE TYOO "2EVLS “TVE 30340 I0MVNE LN VN LN AR
WD HEVELE FTE005 6093 noa'nsT 00 - - - e (2N T 20988 “TeE303d ) N33 SHNEIITE LD
wIHG IwerTLl wamsl TES'§TS DOTOL MEED - FIE'SL ME'SE E SONMEIH XYL AN OHE DTN

“HEVD 20 S300TH0F SIHIO ONY SINFM TS Banan

PAPOC PURH - UOIEIONY TROT BORESORY TTOT

RIET Tserazd RETET TIFEIRT ETGEENT orT [T Trssaz) ESEETE ETTIFE ANNIAIY HIHLO THLOLANS
RETD TRIcost TeEred LLTEEL DO eE WOTT TRoTEs] TeecTena 6T DOOEL HIKLD
WNT - oreneE oTE'Er 000’00z RELT - SENLTE EET 000'05 ARCON LSRN
=0T HITSs LB L90°E6 ooo'os L] [HELBsh L=yl S50'% Doo'oT INOON | TELKIY
wToe ImgEoEl i ] EER 6I6'LRT %009 - foos"eal b 0oS'LB SHOISSIN DD §531 SLEDIH DKINYN
R ITTTH Ios oheseE FaE'S0E'T L] st sk jrard ol TOS'ET ELL'YS 02/SM DRSS 3TN0, e

FININIY BIRLO

KETHR RITS THErTOR TS EDNER TI0TOr ba L] REWL TEIOLRET LIOTROT 0L PSOTTR AL SHOUSENS DHINEIS0 THLOLENS
T RITS SEFIOEY RIS EOT E9 T 0w Fe EeEET] REFL ETLGET Li0's0T 02 TFEOTE T XL 350 F SIS

TGS SWLLVHII0

EEX] Tresel TeTELIE] WSYELFG SLLGELD wSrE [xane Tl TSHFOE T BOSTONT SIS HIINFSEN TYLOLANS
REIT RAET 6016 IS0 BLLES6T w187 TATET EE0SEN BIE'LES BES 157 DRLEINILL TNAOH
=H0 LRS- H] 1eesesy L0 T 000k BOOD = {ooctorih - 000°B6T SN
WD I%T# s lsEs'LET) S50'ER DOOTEL XELD - 580'6T S50'EZ Dog'01 SNV INSNES
RITT I®TFeTl 1990"FCE) FELT'SIT'T 000'Doa's XITT I%5eex) [ =" 1] 0¢L's0s D00'00L SIS LISV
HITE HEE'RT k2t [ 5§ SETIOCE 5 0oo'noa's 4 RYE HLLTT 0r'rg §  BON'TRL & poo'oar & SAHed HEYD

5FUT UFONITSWD

TIaL 0% ElD TR [y 13908 ALk THLOLA0 % =TT TN HLNOW HINOW
ANZEETY 2 = ANFEE ANISED 13ans

20T "0€ WHdY O3AN GO E3d 3L HO
QRN THH3NED - EEGNE 01 38vemas GINEIFY HEWD 40 LH0dId
ALY GG LISl Ty NDIDIEH ONY AT BILYIED IHL




WO DET TRITEn PETSOTE]  §  GECOOLSLT | §  BELWSSOOT 5 R0ODOT Troen Tsteernoal FR T T T NN WEINID - GHEITY HSYD TRL0L

TNNE-BIS NOUNTI WSS ITAIATY

T Treves Tree Tz9't8 PO PLTER TEELTSST W50 Txawee Toovvoa'tal N s HSYD 30 STXENOS HIHLD OV SINAMISHNANEH TYioLans
OO0 B =0era = - - - LHIAWESHTENIIN LT NITLSION, - NI GINOD
HOU0 - {FEET TR TONEEL TR =OUn ALEFESTTRY IZFESTTE - dE TR
L] - - oo = . - WRHED WY 3034
5000 * - - - w000 - . - - LW SIHND W30
w0 Iserasel Issoress] BET'S00T ENZ'ERE w0 [T {saczss) L] 985S 51413076 SNDARETISIN
%exn ' Lo . 9599 w2 . = - SEL'S AIWY LSS SHELYHEA0 T30
RO - - - - W00 = - & |H2LW 17000 “2EVLS 19U 3030 0N WNILNINN 3ALLNANIYd
HA¥0 - TOEFES Lr5's avs'oas =000 - less'oeh BSS0E 2 CHILN TYDOT 10948 THI 034 ) LU 393 53 NEWETH LIRSS
“_ivn LT3 H Issg'azzl LBL'EFE TES'ETS HEED %07 2E| leetTEh TEETT FESL STAINIY N E INeI0HOHITIN

THIY2 A0 STIEMOT BAHLG ONY SIS SIEATEE

WIET [CTTT] [T T TINRLET E=a WAL BE [CRT] SIE'STT E 0 AMNZAIY HIHLO THLOLBNS
wET ROT TR BIGHEE EEETE LISEET T LR RETE] TaETR 86T HIHAO
£V ] = ELT'ER BETOF IENER HATT - BITESE e'el FEOLHT IO LSTELINI
R0 (et el Lesa'el FELDS LOO'EE oo (HsEnel losT'sth 0T =508 £ Lo TR e
wETe (waergel (o 'satl [= 14 ari'tan WO * loos'ah m5eR . SHOISSIN MDD 5537 SAHTHH DR
WG (wzeoH [rsz'zsal YEE'L6ST ORL'SE w0 (w2oest lore'sel s TOS'BT SHOERSINANOSH OIS SINON SH IS LY ANy

VININFY ¥IRLC

Wi EE WETL ELTESES WTTE ET5 IO EE BT WAL ES9ETLT BER RN ET LID's0TeE SIASANS SNULVEIS0 TWLOLENS
BT B8 REVL ELT656 Eo ] GRS E0% B4 RFIGE WIEE TESFBILT FEVELNET LT 0T ¥eL 35N B SIS

FAEES SN EEII0

wIER [ETTad] ToeCsEIl ] SSKEIFE SR [ETE) ITGE BSTESET TEEP06 T SIS EFONISV TYLOLANS
WET WAL TT BEYELE FESETE LEETaT wIOT LR DE OLSBET P56 BFT ROSLAS SRLLTAO L TIRCHN
WD L g lesw'asal L'REET L0z IvE Ein - In06'soel 006506 = SEEN
®aon Pwrenel |gsT'coe] OEE'DSE S50°E8 H®ELD - SHIWE 0ZE'r S90'6T SOVIIEYE INITNLS
HITT KEFY ET9'SET TIS'sBOE FEL'SITT WL HIOEL ESETE LISy LSS ST AT LS58wd
HATE HOEOL STE'96T 5 OLFTOET S  SEI'OLE S WIE WTED Iszr'al & EER'gRL 5 BOKIsL ] 534w HEYD

5FNVT BIONISERE

THLOL 30 % FEIT THIVIENA aLk oL TWLOLAD % NI TINVIHYA, HLROW HINOR
LREHHND ot 20T AN HA HOMHE LNIHHN

ALHOFLNY LISNYEL TWNOI93Y ONYIAAST H3LYIED 3HL




%BS'¥
YSE0
HS6'0
$%G6'0
b8 ¥
%009
%00°9
%o0'S
WEE'S
%00°S
%00'S
Yorl'g
ekl
¥r0's
Y0E"y
%00y
ThEES
%S0E
%0072
WeL
Y65

YelFF
%6l S
%560

mmom

™

0801
0L0L
Fe0L
196
865

0k6
6EG
EeL
ELG
Lag
Lig
Leg
204
gLl

o o

6L

%G60
Y65

o,

%8B8¢

Sobl'S
%69 ¥
%68
%SE°0
%blS
WEEE
%00°E
50Tt
%lS0
%S0
%SE'0

o~
—mOomomn
G

388

HSEE

HEE'E
a3ia

E
ALlENLYI

JOVHIAY OLSAVA QINYooV

JDVHEIAY

TPSiesy'Ls S0S° 208 apLS
03 0LL'Z0MS £
0% EEL'OZLE £
0% 895'0ZES £
0% 0SZ'06% £
LZ0'BY LS 000'000'0LE  S8OL
CER'CFS 000°000°'sS SEOL
98t'EFS 000'000'sS VEL
00£'E5S 000'000's$  £00L
£99'89% 000'008'¥S  OEL
05L'c6% 000'000'5S OB
£128 005'g6¥'L S F6EL
BREL 0Z6'LL0°28  ¥EBOL
9EQ'sed COR'SEL' LS L68
SZL'SHLS 000'000'S$  SBOL
£EE'8GYS 000'000'S1S GBOL
£99'041L8 000'000'S1S SBOL
98¥' LPLE 0LL'I66'68 €80
oPZ'ELS SZZ'LBE'FE  DBOL
IP9'Ere GZL'PPE'Ee avg
0% GEG'ECR'ErS £
650'TLLS
0% yeR'IvLs £
o GEE'ves £
0% Liv'rRE'sE
i3 8.9'zs £
0% £6.'L8E'CH £
BOS'0LLS S+6'620'95%
;3 FER'ZIEES £
0% BLL'LLE €
0% 801'L498 £
0% gre'sss £
0% BEV'LBO'EES £
026'Z6% L8B8°491'8¢  gSBOL
0SZ' Ly 000'000'Es  SBOL
00F'6%$ 000'000'ts  Se0L
oLg'eLy 00D'000'es  S6OL
BLL'ES 005'166'FS  SBOL
0% oL'0s% £
0% £02'S06° 48
0% £0E'S06' LS £
LS3uaLNI TedIoNINd SAVa

I¥i0L WML

Z 1o | abeyq

HNYE A3H
HNYE ATM
d3IMS-HNYE ATH
HNYE ONd
SNYI0DIN 1341LS
SNYI0OIN 134ILS
S3LENDAS dOLTHH
SNYI0JIN T13411s
S3ILIHND3S dOLTHH
S31L-NDI3S dOLTHH
SNVIO3IN 13411S
SNYVI0JIN 734118
SNYIO0IN 713dILs
SNYI0JIN 134LLS
SNYIOJIN 13dLLS
SN%¥I102IN 734ILs
SMYI0JIN 73dILS
SNYI02IN 7134ILS
SMYI03IN 1341LS
QIHO 40 31¥1S

OIHO 40 31¥1S
dIIMSHNYE ATH

HNYE ASM
OIHO 40 31¥Y1S

HNYE AIH
ANYE NOLONILNNH
HNWE OMd
ANYE AZH
OIHO 40 31¥1S
SNVIOSIN T341LS
SNY103IN T1341LS
SNYIOJIN 134LLS
SNYIQIN T341LS
SNYI0JIN 134ILS
HNWE ASM

HANYE NOLDNILNNH
NOLLALLLSNI

HO3 ATH-NISYE HOLYD

HIF-LNYHD

HIF ATM-HILWIN 19007
LNNODOW ADOLSND ONd

g1H4
gIHd
JWTHS
8244
IWIHL
JWTHA
JWTHA
87H4
QNHA
81H4
g7Hd
g1Hd
QWIHS
8044
g1H4

OIHO Y¥1S-HOLYIW 12071

OIHO Yvls
d03 A3H

d423 ATM
OIHO Y¥1S

H33 ATN

LNNOJDY Xl STIWS
ANMNODY ADOLSND INd
ANN4A ALIALLDY IIA0THNI

OIHO "Y.LS
87H4
g7H4
g71H4
81H4
8044

LAWIN AZH-LODY LNVHOH3W

LIMUWIN AINOW
LNIWNNYLSNI

€202 ‘0€ TMdY H0 SY

SLINIWLSIANI AMNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIOIY ANYI13AT IO HILYIHD

EE0E/G
EC0EIs
EZ0L/LIS
PXATAL T
QE0ErLeIE
9Z0ZE
SEODZ/BERE
SEOTILLLL
SEOT/LL
PE0S/OLEL
SEO0Z/BTIOL
SEOE/LE0k
STOEIw!Y
GZoZioes
Se0Zrgea
SCOEMLED
SE0EELS
SZOCTI0LE
LA
EC0E/LS

AV N
EE0T/ G

EE0TIHG
PXAA R

ETOEMLIS
AN AR
EE0EILIG
EE0EFLIS
EE0EILIS
ST0ELES
Seoefcey
SZOLILEN
YZOCI0ES
LAV AT
EE0Z/L/S

SE0LILIS
alva

ALIENLYIN 3SYHOUNd

ET0TIEEY
EC0e/ogiv
EZ0Z/8gv
EZ0ZTIATI¥
EZ0ENLEIE
EC0E/HE
ECOT/BEC
EE0CILME
ECOTILL L
CE0CBLEL
CZ0C/BEI0L
cE0E/LEDL
ce0TiFeioL
LAV AN ]
A ALY
CTOTILED
CE0EFESs
CE0LIFLIE
ceigieare
EEOT/BEY

ONMd HOLYIW T¥20T IvLi0L

QNNd HOLWIN TW007T

QNN LNIFW3JH04NT MY TVL0L

EEDLBESY
E20E/BEF NN INIWIDHOINT MY
ANNd IOINVENSNI TVLOL
XAV AL
E20T/BTIF
ONNd IINYHNSNI
anNnd TYHINI D TYLOL
EC0ERTY
CTOT/ETY
STOTraLy
ET0T/aTy
CE0TIgTy
EE0LLLED
AV AL AA L
CE0gILEr)
LE0Z/0ERs
L20E/ e
EE0ZMBET ANNZ TWHINTD
ONNS INIWIHIL IS aNog TYLOL
ETOT/REy AnNd ININ3YILTY anog
alva annd



%bL'y
HlE¥
YeBL'G
%560
%009
Y009
LS
%805
SElS
poL A
HSE'S
WEE'S
%E0’s
WSS
%t0'S
WBL'OD
WLI'E
W58
%ETE
HBE'0
%Or'e
WSLE
0E ¥
%0GE
%EST
%00
%Sl

VBT

S¥ED

HEED
%lS0
%EP D
YaOL b
YoSE"L
%8572
%GE0
%8BS
%6l S
%560

ogy

0601
0L0L

6ie

0LE
gFs
LS
Zot
Zrg
0gt

£
€

LEZVEF'ES

SP0'ZT0L'LS
753
os
GLE'9TS
£99'L6S
LL¥'06S
08F'ErS
PraTrS
9BE" LS
GZL'ivLE
O0E'E5S
BrE'DLS
vLO'ELE
¥ZL'06%
£BE'LLS
0SB'ESES
£90'L5%
BLE'LLS
9es'BLS
18B'6T1S
BZTErLS
5Z1'5FLS
¥OZBYLS
BgL'Zi%
996' 424
ZrL'ES

9ZL'eoLs

BEOTE
LLL'ES
0FS'ZLE
Z69'FLY
LEL'ZES
ZE0'9ES
I+3'ZO%
0s

0s
08
0

Q7314 ALIENLYIW  LS3INILMI
JDVEIAY Ol SAVA Q3aNdoov

SOVHIAY

L60‘0L6'8RES
TPL'GEY'ESHS
ST AT £
E6L'10% £
000'000'SS  SEOL
000'000'0LE SOl
000'000'0LS  LEL
000°000°s% LEL
000°000'c% LLB
000°'000'cS 899
000'000'5LS OEL
co0'000'SE £00E
I£G'BERS LS
o00'000'sS  SBOL
095'6%L'¥S  ZDOL
80S'CEE'YS  GBOL
000'000'sS LG5S
LEF'SER'FS 66T
000'000'se  ge0L
GRI'PEE'YS  GBOL
o00'o00'ss - £9g
000'000's8 BZL
000'000'sS G801
0D0'000'SS  SBOL
o000'000'S8 Se0L
¥EE'SLB'PE QL9
006" PB'FS [
£6L°5Z28LS
0S.'66FE 5601
oo0'000'Zs  SeOL
oo0'000'2S G801
oo0'o00'st  SBOL
SIE'SHR'LE  ¥Gb
SIE'GPR'LE EL6
g96L'FE6'FS  ELS
PEF' OFS £
TL8'6¥E' LS
GER'GYE'LS £
£E0'FS £
IVdIONIYd SAWQ
IVLOL T

T jo g ebed

OIHO 40 31v1LS
MUNYE AT
SNYIOJIN T341LS
SNYIOJIN T1341LS
S31L-MN23S dOLTH
S31LHN03S dOLTHH
SNVI0DIN 734ILS
S3ILIENDS3IS dOLTHH
S3AILIKND3S dOLTIH
SMNVI02IN 1341LS
SNWI02IN 134ILS
SNWI0DIN 134ILS
SNYI03IN 134ILS
SMYI02IN 1341LS
SAILIENDIS dOLTIH
SALLIENDAS dOLTH
SNYI0JIN 1341LS
SNYI0DIN 1341LS
SAILIENDIS dOLTIH
SAILIENDAS JOLTIIH
SNYI0TIN 1341LS
SNVI02IN 134ILS
SNYI02IM 73410
SAILIEND3IS dOLTIIH
SAILIEND3S JOLTIIH

SNYIO0IN 7134ILS
SNYI0DIN 13dILS
SNVI0DIN T34ILS
SNYI0DIN 134ILS
SNYI0JIN 713dILS
SNYI02IN T34ILS
S3AILEND3S JOLTIIH
HNYE AGH

QIHO 40 31Y1s
HANYE AT

NOLLMLILSNI

OIHO YYLls
Ho3 AIH
8114
H1H4
SWTHA
QWIH4
87H4
g87H4d
g7H4
8044
g7H4
SWTHA
DRHS
49 Wo AUNSYIUL SN
49 wol gH4
4O Woy YINL
49 Wwoy giH4
492 woy 8§04
g1H4
g7Hd
g7Hd
gIH4
gTH4
JLON AHNSYIHL S
JLON ABNSYIHL SN

WirNS
8244
g1H4
g1H4
g7H4
g7Hd
JLON AYNSYIYL SN
Y33 ATAH

OIHO Yv1s
H33 A3

LHIWNHLSNI

£20Z ‘0€ TI¥dVY 40 sY

SLINIWLSIANI AMNSYIHL 30 AHOLNIANI

OIS
AL
DE0ENLEIE
SETOTISE
STOEAENE
St AL A
SZOTILESR
FEOZIOTEL
STOEIFER
SE0ElLLILL
FEOCIaE9
STOT/LEN
Sgoz/sertl
FEOTISLILL
FE0Z/BET
€E0Zfeers
SZOZ/ERSS
Fe0giael
Fe0g/Bere
£eogiecre
SZ0ZI0ER
SE0ZI0E/9
STOEivLiF
EE0E/0erLL
ECOENEr

PEOTIFIE
FEOTISHF
FEOZIOEE
venzioerg
veozieee
FEOZISES
YEOZIOE
EE0LIIS

E20E/LIS
ETOE/LG

JLlva
ALENLYIN

ALIIOHLNY LISNYYL TYNOIDIY ANYTIAT D HILYIHD

ETOEraTiy
EEO0T/ETY
ETOTILTIE
EE0L9/E
STOZIEIE
EE0TI9EE
EeDErLEfe
ECDEFEE
ETOTIVER
ECOTILLIE
EE0ESLIE
EC0ZILEN
CTOEMBEN L
VEOZIGHLL
CEOZ/oem
CTOTILEL
AN A
LE0T/BE L
CEDE/0Ee
CEOE/0EE
CEOZ/0E
CE0ZNES
CEOLIv LY
CEQEIELE
CE0TIBE

LEOEIPIE
LEOT/S
LEOZI0ES
LE0Z/9Ere
CElC/BEE
Ze0g/see
ceoeiens
TN

[XAITA T
EC0ZBTIY
a1va
ASVHIUN

SANNZ 77V IV.LOL
ONNd FAHISTH TVLOL

aNnd 3AY3E3Y

ONNd TV LHYD Vi TYLOL

AaNNd TYLIdYD Y1Y
ONind NOISNId TYLOL

ONNd NOISN3d
ann4d



log'ezzs

EDE'S06'L$

jUsuEigey puog

D0'0S6'LLr'6S | D0'526°0PS'8S | 00°000'0LS'4S  00°S/6'086% 00°S.6'0E6% 00°0% 00'5/6'0E6%  00'00D'SLE'ZES
00°005'LSS' L | OD'0SL'00E'L 00°000°0S0°L 00'05L'052 00°05.'052 oo'o 00°052'05Z 00'000'020'0L
00'00S'S6S'L | O0'0SL'EZEH'L 00'000'0sE"L 000GL'ZLL 00°08L'2LL oo'o 00°054°22L 00'000'0LE"'D
00°05L'96¢'F O0'GLE'8E0"F CO'000°00LE 00'5LE'BGE 00°S.E'BBE 000 00'sie'gse 00'000'SEG'SE
oo'coZ'gze’t | oD'00L'sLL'L 00°000'0LE"L 00'00}'801 00'00L'601 000 00004 801 00'000'0F0'S
€202 E20EILEL EC0EILZL EZOTILTL eZ0ZiL9 EZOZILI9 EZT0TILI9 b4V AN A S
uawanbay | guawalnbay jajqefed jejqedied Auawadnbey jaigqedeq faqefey Buipumising
1gag oL 82138 Jgag ledipupg Isauaqu| aqAIaS 50 ledjaupg Isauau| ledisupd g0

€202 '0€ YAV 40 SV

SN.LVLS ONY 3TINA3HOS J0IAY3S Lg3a

ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANYI1ZAT 1D ¥ILYINS

palINDay apISY 185 MUILOWN

(ezoz 104 ap|sy Jag) souUE(EE JUaIND

DEDZ 920
LZ0Z 980
8202 98Q
SE20Z 38
2ieq
Aungewy
leul

spuog |gjoL
‘ASY Xe] S9[eS-§L0Z Seuag
“NBY Xe| s9|eg-gL0g sauas
‘ASY X8 $8]ES-GL0Z Sauag
'\SY XB] SIES-VPLOZ Seues
spuog



%9L'0
%8S L

Yell'¥
%9Z'E
%lB'E
%aLE
%B0'E
%ELL
%ill
%050
%010
%010
%100
%100
# 01aA

13XuVIN  OUVONYLS S9vHIAY

%LE0°0
WL %kl ¥E3'¥1L0'0%
%EGE %09°E BLi'okL' LS
%IGE %FTE L19'198%
%B0E GITE EQL'20E'LS
%BGE %ETE OFZ'B05E
%E0'E WOTE £51'554%
%boL %80T EZE'BFSS
%9z L %3l 3E'95ES
%880 %G0° | 990'c8eS
%E9'0 %850 B0G'60LE
Y0 SEP'0 ¥BE 'O
%5820 %G8Z'0 08E'LFS
%910 %6L°0 19€'/88
# O34 aT=ik [WETTRTE]
LSTuI NI

cZie

EZL'EEB'SSES

CET'POF'OLES
¥LL'9¥0'69EE
¥Ea'BY. 'GSES
LLE'IPE'EOES
BL6'289'05EE
B8E8'8SF'55E
691'6.6'65E%
BF3'S05'OVES
+08'/9€'8624
0s2'SLE'oBES
96L'04F'00ES
Z2EC' PG OBEY
3INYIYE
JoVHIAY

VeSS0~ %09°0-
S5 ¥ %E5 v
%68 ¥ b TATR
%69 %l
YR %8S
%6l ¥ %89g ¥
#a3IA #QT73IA

LANAINOW QuvanyLls

piaLA Aeq ¢ pund fsuopy Aunseal) g sienbe plalA 1ayJepm &

%00

Yabl ¥

Yoll 't

WSE6E

WELE

(U ETFN
JDVHIAY

T2z

£202 '0¢ ¥dY HONOYHL 31¥a OL ¥vy3A
IONVINHOLMAd LNINLSIANI 40 AHVINWNNS

ALIHOHLNY LISNYHL TYNOIDIY ONVIIAT IO HILYIYO

"slilg Aunseau | yluow g 10} spjsid Jusjeainba uodnoo abelane Bunoyy #

X3aNI (43aNN) ¥3A0 SAT3IA IDOVHIAY VLN

B869'G66'FS

PEE'REF' LS
LZT'EPY LS
BTE'SE0' LS
$5/'880'LS
a3INevy
Lszuain

94¢'8BBR'0LE

G92'66Z'08E%
BIS'LBE'RLEE
EETEOT ELIES
8B3009°ELES
JONVIVE
ADVHIAY

31v0 OL "uv3A

€3aN303a

HJ38W3INON

H380L30

4383 Ld3s

Lsnany

Alnr

annr

AV

Tddy

HIHWIN

AUYNYE3d

AdYNNYT
HLNOW




L0°BES

CT9SE'TS

0E'8L9%
YETIOS
BE°L$

BZ'18T'e$
B61'951'8L$
69'208'L2$
69°70871¢S

FE'BEL'OVE
0S0LE'OLYS
O 9E0' L0923
PLOBE
16°008°21%
00°0SZ'LELS
00°000'S¥$
2010628
LS'000'2LS
91°266°C8

B9°0BES

8629698
L2°9.5'228
1Z9l52cs

g0 | sbed

J1v3 OL UV3A 2202
J1W0 OL 43 A E202
EZ0Z YdY

JLvd OL Uv3A 2202
31V0 OL UY3A £202
€202 ddV

JLVd OL Hv3A 2202
210 O HY3A €202
ETOE NHdY

31%0 OL Y¥¥3A 2202
31¥0d OL YWv3A £202
EE0Z TddY

£Z0Z l¥dY

OIHOYV1S
LNMODOW d33MS MNVE ATH
ANNd LNINIDHO0HNI MY

OIHOYYLlS
ANN- SONYEHNSNI

INNOIIY dIIMS HNVE ATH-LNNODDIY LNYHOHIW
INNOJOY AQOLSND DONd

gTH4d

g1H4

INNODOY d33MS HNYE ATM

QIHOYY1S

INNODOV XL SITYS-NOLONILNNH

aNnNd TYHINID

LIMEYIN ASNOW NOLONILNAH
anNnd LNIWIHILIY aNOo8

(siSVE HSVD) SONINYYI INIJWLISIANI NO LHO4IN
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIH ANVISAT 1D HILVIND



90°zrL'0zs
B4'GB9'8YE
8gZIE'eS
BSZLS
00°00E'ES

A

08'vL$
0v'aLs
0r'BLE

89'Z96%
B¥ 0BZ'0ES
91865'6%
EE 1S
EB'955'5%

06°LL0'86%
0Z'L90'6LE"LS
16°/25°205%
90zocs
00'052'8E$
00°000°25$
00'Sie'9Es

SL'L86'7LLS
00°0SZ°LELS
9E'60r'TYLS

£ J0 g sbed

31¥0 Ol "Uv3A 2202
31va 01 Yv3A 20T
E20T TiddY

31vQa OL Yv3A 2oz
31%0 OL Uv3A €202
EZOZ lddY

3L1¥0d Ol Uv3A g2oe
31va OL ¥v3A €202
E20E ddvY

31v¥0 Ol Yv3A gZoe

J1%0 OL ¥v3 A\ E20E
E20E udY

£202 iYdy

{sisvg HSYD) SONINYYS INIIWLSIANI NO L¥Od3N
ALRHOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVTIIATTD Y3 LVYIND

LNNODIV dIIMS YMNYE ATH
8044
aNN4 TVLdYd Y1

LAEYIN ASNOW HNWE ATH
INNOIJV ALIAILLOY IJA0TdWI

LNNOJJV d33MS MNYE AN
OIHOYYLS
aNNd NOISNId

LNNOJTY d33MS MNYE AT
2WH4

JNTHA

QWTHS

d0 Jafeg

g1H4

HOLYW W20 T1-0IHOUYLS
aNNd HOLYIN T¥201



%00¥
9.1'888'0LE$

00.1'GB6'v$
LeZvBr'eS
(€62'9.5'L9)

TLLLIO'ES
Jiva ol
dv3A £202

Ly oFL'LITS
£22lL'210'E8
0L ¥SP'eL0"LS

ch'8Tl'coLs
L0POL'TLO'LE
£L'866'¥rES
ELF¥OLTS
00°G29'50%
S1Les'viLS
59°/8Z'€0%

€ Jo ¢ abed

%6l ¥
G9T'66T 0BES
PBE'BEF LS
\ZZ'PEF'CS
{18z'62L'es)

PSP'ELO'LS
Ay

31va OL ¥v3A Z202
31v0J Ol Uv3A eZ0T
€202 TYdY

31¥a OL Uv3A gele
J1%0 OL 4¥3A 20T
£20C Tlddv

£202 HdV

SLINIWLSIANI NO TIIA IOVHINY

{1S0D) IONYIVE LNIWLSIAN] IOVHIAY

‘A3NYY3 FWOINI LSIHILNI
‘DONIONT

ONINNID3E

-LS3HILNI O3NYIIV

(SISVA HSYD) Q3AIZDIY LSIHI LN

SAanNN4 TIv TvL0L

LNNOIDY d3IMS HNYE ATM
8TH4

do Jadeg

OIHOWYLS

aNNd 3AY3S3Y

(SISVE HSVYD) SONINYYI INIWLSIANI NO LHOdIH
ALIMOHLAY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANYISAT 1O NILVIND



R
%bae
%SG6 0
%61LG
%560
%OF'E
a3aiAa
IOVHIAY

2007001 96Z'CT' 68ES 0L¥'618'88E5
%56 69 000'00F'2L2S PSB'066'LLTS
0T L £69'0r9"FS £69'0v0've
%L9°9T DER'9OF'E0LS OE8'99%'coLS
%1070 GET'¥TS GEZ'ves
WFT T BES'C0L'8S 2B.'069'9%
IYLOL INNOWY IYdioNINd
40 LN3o¥3d 20v4
£Z0Z '0€ HdY SV

OINM04140d LNIWLSIANI 40 NOLLISOdINOD

oljojHCd JusLlisaau] [Blol
S8|jUNSag JUaWWBACS) 'S
Junoooy sjey ypaln sbulueg
OO els
junoooy deamg yueg Ay
UNoaoYy Jasely Asuopy
JuaWnIIsSU|



"WOI1EWIAOJUI EUDINPPE JO}
0B-0ZDT "ON UDINOS3Y S33ISAUL O PIEDG PUB HZ0 UNPAJ0L] ANRASIUMIPY {A110d [3a211) ALOUINY JISUBL) |PUBITaY PUEJBASE) Ja18.S BUA J0 SUOREINTaY pUE SanY PAYIPOT BU3 Jo 959 saidey) o3 Jajas aseald

TTOT *LT YUEW PRIER ABUUNN JURJG 'Y 0} vopuidQ AIOS|APY | EISUOISSIULLGD) A3 OO
SOFTTOZ JSQUINY Lo 00 UOISSILULG) SIHAF 00
OZOT 9 ABW palep (siieyy (B8 - NDQ) Paoju=g Buly (AIays 01 UouIdE AIDSIAPY 1815 UD|SSILILOD ST 0140
T-FE20-4N|-E00E JaqLunpy uoiuidpy [BUI0U] UD|SSILUWICD YA 04O
(3} pue [a)e0rzor SUDNISS BPOD PESINGY DIYD
s 3oueldwios i 3 o] s|erpivpul jqeaydde 1oj paprosd BuRG S1UOHELLICIUI SIUL

10N
adpay |and jueq sLUeH DY
JeqsiBay puog UO{|3I 304 maN O juEg
SIUBWISIU-0IYD HY LS
JRuIEpUn
JUNOITY ¥E| S3ES PUE JUIWLBIIaY puog yueg uoldununy
UNQITY MOI5T PAYL YA
PJED I[P3J] pUe JURCIDY [BIpoISN) Hueg Jnd
saauas Sujueq uiepy yueg A3y

diysuoiefad jo aJniepy uogniysu [lepueUl fHuag

% £20T '0E Judy jo 5%
sdjysuoiejay [epueuly pue Supjueg
Rpoyiny usues) jeuoiSay pueRaap JajeRug



